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Iron Bridge House – Summary 

 

The landscape of Ironbridge has a particularly complex history and Iron Bridge 

House was erected during the proudest and most self-confident stage of that 

history, when the area could aptly be described as 'the most extraordinary 

district in the world'. The wealth of the Severn Gorge was founded on its 

geology. The river cuts through the rich mineral seams of the carboniferous 

measures and at the same time provided a means of carrying away the produce 

of those seams. The urge to exploit these made it accruable for technical 

advance. 

As early as the 16th century the Severn was a great commercial highway linking 

mid-Wales to the Bristol Channel. Large-scale exploitation of the minerals of the 

Gorge began in Elizabeth I’s reign in the late 16th century. Coal from Broseley 

and Madeley was carried up and downstream by barge to become the staple 

fuel of the Severn Valley from Welshpool to Gloucester. Numerous industries 

making use of the local coal grew up in the Gorge: potteries, saltworks, tar 

distilleries and tobacco pipe manufacturers. Just across the river from Iron 

Bridge House is a timber-framed building which in the early 18th century was 

part of a lead-smelting complex, one of several in the district using ore brought 

downstream from mid-Wales, that was smelted using the cheap local coal and 

forwarded as pig lead to Bristol. The iron industry was established in the area in 

the Middle Ages, but it did not achieve any national significance until 1709, 

when Abraham Darby I first successfully smelted iron ore with coke at 

Coalbrookdale. 

For about half a century, from 1755 onwards, the east Shropshire coalfield was 

the foremost ironworking area in Great Britain. Many of the most important 

innovations both in ironmaking technology and in the application of iron were 

pioneered here. It soon attracted visitors, both those with an interest in 

technology and those who merely wished to be thrilled by the sight of blazing 

furnaces in a spectacular setting, from all over the world. 

In the mid-I770s the Severn Gorge was a rough, open area, dotted with 

cottages and pock-marked with coal and iron ore mines. Horses drew waggons 

along primitive railways, carrying ore to the furnaces at Coalbrookdale and 

Madeley Wood, and coal to the riverside for sale along the Severn. Where the 

Iron Bridge now stands there formerly plied a ferry boat but few travellers other 

than local people used it, for the riverside was almost unapproachable by road. 

The first steps towards the erection of a bridge were taken in 1774 but it was 

not until New Year's Day 1781 that the bridge was opened to traffic. The 

provider of the greater part of the money for the scheme and the manager of the 

whole construction process was Abraham Darby III of the Coalbrookdale 

ironworks. This was the first iron bridge in the world and it was recognised and 

promoted by the proprietors as a unique achievement. 
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The ancient market of Madeley, which dated from the reign of Henry IlI, had 

lapsed by the beginning of the 18th century but was revived in 1763. The north 

end of the Iron Bridge lay in the parish of Madeley and the market was 

transferred to it in the 1780s. This seems to have been largely the decision of 

Richard Reynolds, the Quaker ironmaster, partner of Abraham Darby III at 

Coalbrookdale and Lord of the Manor of Madeley. He was responsible in about 

1800 for starting a short-lived cattle and pig market in the area and the market 

place still belonged to his descendants in the mid-19th century. Iron Bridge 

House reflects the prosperity of the market centre that Reynolds and his 

collaborators established. It is a substantial six-bedroomed house over a double-

fronted shop, with store rooms linked by trap doors, a pulley (which still 

survives) in the roof and various offices, stables, coach houses, cellars and a 

'bacon drying house' adjoining. It was probably built by one Henry Smith whose 

imposing bill headings reflect not just pride in his own premises, but an 

awareness of their situation, next to the first iron bridge in the world. 

By the 1840s Smith was working in partnership with Charles Price and also with 

a Charles Smith, probably his son, who combined the trades of ironmonger and 

grocer. Charles Price's household in 1851 was typical of a prosperous Victorian 

shopkeeper. As well as his wife and three children, it included an assistant and 

two apprentices, two nurses and a house servant. 

Ironbridge was then a thriving commercial centre with several inns, a post 

office, a printing shop, a subscription Iibrary, a dispensary, a bank, various 

doctors' surgeries, lawyers' offices and a range of splendid shops, of which Iron 

Bridge House was perhaps the most imposing. 

The prosperity of Ironbridge was sustained by the opening of the Severn Valley 

Railway in 1862. Ironbridge and Broseley station was at the south end of the 

bridge and the numerous travellers from the Madeley area to Shrewsbury, 

Bridgnorth or beyond all had to cross the bridge, thus bringing more trade to the 

shopkeepers at its northern end. 

The coming of the railway brought about a decline in river traffic. By the 1860s 

none of the provisions sold at the shop in Iron Bridge House would have been 

brought up the river by barge, and by 1900 there were no longer any cargo-

carrying barges at all on the Shropshire portion of the Severn. The decline of 

local industry from the late 19th century onwards diminished the trade of 

Ironbridge and while the designation of Telford New Town in the 1960s began 

to restore prosperity to the district as a whole, competition from other shopping 

centres and heavy road traffic have brought about the closure of many of the 

shops in lronbridge. At the same time the growing recognition that the 

monuments of the Industrial Revolution are as much part of our history as 

stately homes or ruined abbeys brought increasing numbers of visitors to see the 

bridge. The Iron Bridge is a monument of international importance. The market 

place at its northern end was laid out as a direct consequence of the building of 

the bridge, testament to the creation of something unique, which at the same 
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time provided opportunities for profitable speculation and demanded an 

appropriate setting. Iron Bridge House is an elegant and essential part of that 

setting. 

In 1835 the land on which the building now stands was sold to Henry Smith, 

grocer, for the sum of £1,400. The seller was William Smith, who had bought 

the land in 1827 from the family of Richard Reynolds, partner of Abraham Darby 

III. 

In 1861 Henry Smith died, leaving the property to his son Egerton William Smith 

to carry on the business. By 1916 it was bought by R. A. Jones for £550. His 

widow Mrs Jones sold it to J. C. Lloyd and Sons, a grocery and off-licence 

business, in 1949. They in turn sold it to Federated Properties Ltd., who in 

1972 sold it to the Landmark Trust. The Trust leased the ground floor shop to 

the Ironbridge Gorge Museum Trust until 1975, when restoration work began. 

 

 

Introduction  

 

Iron Bridge House is the complete establishment of a substantial grocer, with a 

large house over a double-fronted shop, and all the offices behind, from 

storerooms to stables. Today it contributes to the historic setting of the famous 

Iron Bridge within the World Heritage Site area. 

 

The house dates to the 1830s, built on a plot of land overlooking the Iron Bridge 

which was completed in 1779. Situated in a prime position in the Square and 

market area on the north bank from the Bridge, the building provided a profitable 

retail business for its occupiers during the 19th century.  

 

The Landmark Trust purchased the property in 1972.  
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Background to Iron Bridge House and Ironbridge 

 

At first sight Iron Bridge House appears part of a mature urban landscape, the 

sort of building one might expect to find in a proud and ancient borough which 

prospered in the late 18th century. It would not be out of place in Ludlow or 

Bury St Edmunds or Abingdon. But the sophistication of the townscape is no 

more than skin deep. On the hillside to the north of the Square, houses, 

workshops and places of worship stand amid a bewildering maze of ancient 

trackways, footpaths and primitive railway routes, on which the present pattern 

of main roads was imposed only after the building of the Iron Bridge. On the 

opposite bank of the Severn the prospect is not one of town streets but of 

woodlands, which mask many relics of former industrial activities.  

 

The landscape of Ironbridge has a particularly complex history and Iron Bridge 

House was erected during the proudest and most self-confident stage of that 

history, when the area could aptly be described as 'the most extraordinary 

district in the world'.  

 

The wealth of the Severn Gorge was determined by its geology. The river cuts 

through the rich mineral seams of the carboniferous measures and at the same 

time provides a means of carrying away the produce of those seams. As early 

as the 16th century, the Severn was a great commercial highway linking mid-

Wales to the Bristol Channel. In the reign of Elizabeth I, large-scale exploitation 

of the minerals of the Gorge began, with coal from Broseley and Madeley carried 

up and downstream by barge, becoming the staple fuel of the Severn valley 

from Welshpool to Gloucester. By 1635, annual production from Broseley and 

Benthall was around 100,000 tons per year mainly for export but also for 

fuelling local clay industries and lead as well as other Gorge industries, including 

potteries, saltworks, tar distilleries and tobacco pipe manufacturers.  
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Just across the river from Iron Bridge House is a timber-framed building which in 

the early 18th century was part of a lead-smelting complex, one of several in 

the district using ore brought downstream from mid-Wales fuelled by the cheap 

local coal, forwarding their pig lead to Bristol. The iron industry was established 

in the area in the Middle Ages but it did not achieve any national significance 

until 1709 when, at Coalbrookdale, Abraham Darby I successfully smelted iron 

ore with coke for the first time.  

 

For about half a century from 1755 onwards the east Shropshire coalfield was 

the foremost ironworking area in Great Britain. Many of the most important 

innovations both in ironmaking technology and in the application of iron were 

pioneered here. It attracted visitors, both those with an interest in technology 

and those who merely wished to be thrilled by the sight of blazing furnaces in a 

spectacular setting, from all over the world.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Iron Works, Coalbrookdale, hand-coloured 

aquatint 1805, by William Pickett 
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In the mid-I770s the Severn Gorge was a rough, open area, dotted with 

cottages and pock-marked with coal and iron ore mines. Horses drew waggons 

along primitive railways, carrying ore to the furnaces at Coalbrookdale and 

Madeley Wood, and  coal to the riverside for sale along the Severn. The nearest 

bridge was two miles away at Buildwas. A ferry boat operated where the Iron 

Bridge now stands but few travellers other than local people used it as the 

riverside was almost unapproachable by road and it was dangerous especially in 

winter.  

 

The first steps towards the erection of a bridge were taken in 1774. The project 

was made public in 1775 and an Act of Parliament was obtained in 1776 with 

construction commencing in November of the following year. The chosen 

crossing point, where the ferry had crossed from Benthall to Madeley Wood, had 

the advantage of high approaches on both sides and relative stability. The 

abutments were erected in 1778 and the ironwork was completed in the 

summer of 1779, using 378 tons of iron. It was formally opened on New Year's 

Day 1781 to traffic, having cost more than £6,000.  

 

The instigator of the project was the Shrewsbury architect Thomas Pritchard, 

who drew up the designs, but he died in 1777, a month after work had begun. 

Construction of the bridge also gained the backing of the great ironmaster John 

Wilkinson and Edward Harries, Lord of the Manor of Benthall. The provider of 

the greater part of the money to continue the project and manage the whole 

construction process was Abraham Darby III of the Coalbrookdale ironworks, 

where all the iron for the bridge was cast.  

 

This was the first iron bridge in the world and it was recognised and promoted 

by the proprietors as a unique achievement who commissioned engravings of it 

by London artists. Their pride was shared by local innkeepers who quoted the 

proximity of the bridge among the attractions of their hostelries and by the 

operators of stage coaches who named it among the scenic attractions on their 

routes. 
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View of the mouth of a coal 

pit near Broseley 

Upper Works, Coalbrookdale, Telford, 1758.  

In the foreground a road runs across left to 

right, with a wall and shrubs in front. Along 

this a large metal boiler is being pulled on a 

cart by six horses. 
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It is against this background of the erection of the Iron Bridge bringing the 

attention of the world upon the Severn Gorge, that the development of the 

Square must be seen. As soon as the Bridge was built, tourists were encouraged 

to come from far and wide to see it. The first building of consequence erected at 

the northern end of the bridge seems to have been the Tontine Hotel, 

constructed by a partnership which included most of the bridge proprietors. It 

was opened in 1784, the original building being designed by the Shrewsbury 

architect John Hiram Haycock. Haycock also built a handsome stable range 

topped with a cupola on the opposite side of the road to the hotel, close to Iron 

Bridge House. In 1786-7 the hotel was extended by Samuel Wright of 

Kidderminster, who probably designed the eastern elevation, with its splendid 

Venetian and oriel windows, which reflect the best provincial taste of the period.  

 

 

  

Early advertisement for the Tontine Hotel.  
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The Iron Bridge near Coalbrookdale and surrounding country, 1789. 

This sketch was drawn eight years after the Bridge had opened to 

traffic, by which time Madeley market had moved to Ironbridge. 

Buildwas Bridge - The great floods of 1795 washed away the medieval 

bridge at Buildwas. An iron bridge, designed by Thomas Telford and 

cast by the Coalbrookdale Company, was its replacement, a sign of 

growing confidence in the use of cast iron. 
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Full documentary evidence for the construction of the rest of the Square does 

not survive, but the minutes of the Tontine proprietors show that they were 

concerned with the development of the area as a whole. They determined the 

extent of space left in front of the market house in 1784 and were responsible 

for levelling the ground between the Square and the river plus the steps leading 

down from the market area.  

 

Ironbridge the town began to grow around the Bridge immediately after it 

opened to traffic, stimulated by tourism and the permanent river crossing. After 

the Bridge survived the great floods of 1795, cast iron was used widely and 

imaginatively in construction of bridges, buildings and aqueducts. 

The ancient market of Madeley, which dated from the reign of Henry IlI, had 

lapsed by the beginning of the 18th century but was revived in 1763. The north 

end of the Iron Bridge lay in the parish of Madeley and the market was 

transferred in the 1780s. This seems to have been largely the decision of 

Richard Reynolds, the Quaker ironmaster, partner of Abraham Darby III at 

Coalbrookdale, and Lord of the Manor of Madeley. He was responsible in about 

1800 for starting a short-lived cattle and pig market in the area and the market 

place still belonged to his descendants in the mid-19th century.  

 

Iron Bridge House reflects the prosperity of the market centre established by 

Reynolds and his collaborators. It is a substantial six-bedroomed house over a 

double-fronted shop, with store rooms linked by trap doors, with a pulley (which 

still survives) in the roof, and various offices, stables, coach houses, cellars, and 

a 'bacon drying house' adjoining. It was probably built by one Henry Smith, 

whose imposing bill headings reflect not just pride in his own premises but an 

awareness of their situation, next to the first iron bridge in the world.  

 

By the 1840s Smith was working in partnership with one Charles Price and also 

with a Charles Smith, probably his son, who combined the trade of ironmonger 

with that of grocer. Charles Price's household in 1851 was typical of that of a 
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prosperous Victorian shopkeeper. As well as his wife and three children, it 

included an assistant and two apprentices, two nurses and a house servant.  

 

Ironbridge was then a thriving commercial centre with several inns, a post 

office, a printing shop, a subscription Iibrary, a dispensary, a bank, various 

doctors' surgeries and lawyers' offices, and a range of splendid shops, of which 

Iron Bridge House was perhaps the most imposing.  

 

The main roads that approach the Bridge and the Square all date from or after 

the construction of the Bridge. The proprietors constructed the 'Bridge Road' up 

the valley of the Benthall Brook on the south bank, to join the turnpike road from 

Much Wenlock to Broseley. On the north side they built what is now called 

Church Hill, to connect the Bridge with the Madeley-Build was Bridge turnpike 

road on top of Lincoln Hill, albeit by an awkward dog-leg bend. The Bridge 

trustees received the permission for the Coalbrookdale Company to use the 

Wharfage as a route to the bridge in 1782, but it was not until 1806 that this 

formally became part of a turnpike road, and even then those who had been 

accustomed to stack coal and other goods on it were allowed to continue to do 

so. The present main road from Ironbridge to Madeley was built between 1806 

and 1810. It is a substantial feat of engineering, and cuts across most of the 

ancient tracks running along the hillside. The final road link to the bridge was 

the road along the south bank, at first parallel with the river and then climbing to 

the Foresters Arms at Broseley, which was completed in 1828.  

 

Not everyone welcomed the new Bridge and many locals objected to paying the 

tolls. Instead, they used their coracles to cross the river as well as to fish and 

poach. Tommy Roger was well known as a poacher and the local 

newspaper reported his appearance in court on poaching charges. He also 

helped to build the new police cells and court room in Ironbridge in 1862 - only 

to be one of the first people to use them!  
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The prosperity of Ironbridge was sustained by the opening of the Severn Valley 

Railway in 1862. Ironbridge & Broseley station was at the south end of the 

bridge, and the numerous travellers from the Madeley area to Shrewsbury, 

Bridgnorth or beyond all had to cross the bridge, thus bringing more trade to the 

shopkeepers at its northern end.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Tommy Rogers, born c.1845, coracle maker of 

Ironbridge. A coracle is a small, lightweight 

boat with a loosely woven frame traditionally 

covered in animal hide, but in more recent 

times they are made from calico, canvas and 

coated with a substance such as bitumen. 
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The coming of the railway brought about a decline in the river traffic. By the 

1860s none of the provisions sold at the shop in Iron Bridge House would have 

been brought up the river by barge and, by 1900, there were no longer any 

cargo-carrying barges at all on the Shropshire portion of the Severn. In 1934 the 

Iron Bridge was finally closed to vehicles and designated an Ancient Monument.  

 

Early illustrations of the bridge at Ironbridge show that shops and houses grew 

up around the northern abutment soon after the bridge was completed. After 

several phases of rebuilding these shops were finally demolished in the 1940s – 

luckily, the Iron Bridge House was not included in the demolition. A brick toll 

house was built at the same time as the Bridge which still survives today and 

has been converted into an information centre.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A late nineteenth century view showing how much the town of Ironbridge had 

grown. The church was built in 1835-6 and assigned the parish of Ironbridge 

and Coalbrookdale in 1845. 
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A heavily laden cart makes its way up Tontine Hill 

and three men weigh wool on the north bank. Iron 

land arches were built on the south side of the river 

in 1821 to reduce the weight of the abutment. 

The Iron Bridge in 1935 just after closure to traffic 

and scheduling as an ancient monument. The 

buildings to the left of the Bridge were demolished 

in May 1946 to make way for a planned 

replacement bridge. 



 Iron Bridge House History Album 

19 

 

In the twentieth century, Ironbridge became neglected almost to the point of 

dereliction. The designation of Telford New Town in the 1960s began to restore 

prosperity to the district as a whole with the implementation of a major 

conservation programme during which time almost every house in Ironbridge 

was restored. However, competition from other shopping centres and heavy 

road traffic have brought about the closure of many of the shops in lronbridge, 

although, happily, the Friday open air market still flourishes. At the same time 

the growing recognition that the monuments of the Industrial Revolution are as 

much part of our history as stately homes or ruined abbeys has resulted in 

increasing numbers of visitors to see the Bridge. The Iron Bridge is a monument 

of international importance and in 1986 the Ironbridge Gorge became one of the 

first group of seven UK sites to be awarded World Heritage status by UNESCO.  

 

The market place on the north bank, laid out as a direct consequence of the 

building of the Bridge, is a symbol of the consequence of the bridge builders that 

they had created something unique - which at the same time provided 

opportunities for profitable speculation and demanded an appropriate setting. 

Iron Bridge House is an elegant and essential part of that setting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Early photograph of the north bank of 

Ironbridge town pre-1940s.  
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A military parade in Ironbridge to raise money for war weapons 

during the Second World War. The block of buildings centre left 

were demolished just after the war to make way for a proposed 

second bridge crossing which, fortunately, never happened. The 

war memorial has since moved to the other side of the road.  

Early photograph showing the Wharfage, the 

Tontine hotel and the now demolished 

buildings immediately north of the Iron Bridge. 
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The Owners of Iron Bridge House  

 
 

The history of Iron Bridge House (also known as 'Shop in the Square' and 

formerly known simply as 34, High Street, Ironbridge) is itself of interest.  The 

building does not date from the first phase of development following the 

opening of the Bridge in the 1780s. In 1835 the land on which Iron Bridge 

House now stands was sold to Henry Smith, grocer, for the sum of £1,400. The 

seller was William Smith, who had bought the land in 1827 from the family of 

Richard Reynolds, partner of Abraham Darby III. On the deed of 1827 the land is 

shown shaded with no building yet on it.  

  

A bill head in the Ironbridge Gorge Museum indicates that before the end of the 

1830s Henry Smith had set up on a house on this site as 'grocer, tea dealer and 

tobacconist, butter, cheese, bacon, London dip, store & mould candles, hop & 

flour factor'.  

 

In 1861 Henry Smith died, leaving the property so that his son Egerton William 

Smith might carry on the business, by paying off his brother Henry, a farmer. In 

1863 Egerton paid £1,200 to his brother and others. He married in 1869, and 

carried on the business which in the 1870 Post Office Directory is called 

'Egerton William Smith, grocer and provision dealer, High Street and at 

Coalbrookdale'. He died in 1887, leaving the property to his widow Mary. They 

seem to have had two children at least: Egerton William Smith, commercial 

traveller, and Marian Stokes, who married and lived at Coalbrookdale. After 

Mary Smith's death her children sold the property to Thomas Parker for £1,000. 

He lived at Severn House, outside Ironbridge on the Shrewsbury Road, and died 

shortly afterwards, for Iron Bridge House was sold in the sale of his property at 

the Tontine Hotel on 27 June 1916. It was bought by R. A. Jones for £550. His 

widow Mrs Jones sold it to J. C. Lloyd and Sons, a grocery and off-licence 

business, in 1949.  
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Deed of 1827 with land shown shaded where 

Iron Bridge House is now located. 

A bill heading of the firm of Henry Smith, 

grocer, dating from the 1830s in the collection 

of the Ironbridge Gorge Museum Trust. 
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Geoff Hickman, who was the second manager installed by J.C. Lloyd's in the 

early 1950s, recalls some of its more recent history.  He remembers the original 

dark wood interior, consisting of shelves, labelled drawers and canisters 

containing everything one would expect to find in a high class grocer's shop - 

tea, sugar, spices, etc.  The shop also had oak beams (since covered up), and a 

small office at the back with an old-fashioned safe, and antiquated electric 

lighting.  The shop was 'modernised' to suit the 1950s by J.C. Lloyd, and the 

interior stripped out. In Mr Hickman's day, there was a local delivery service by 

car and by a delivery boy.  Most provisions came in bulk.  Sugar came in 2cwt 

sacks and was weighed out on Monday mornings into bags of 1lb, 2lb or 6lb.  

Butter, lard, cheese and margarine also came in bulk, and were stored in the 

cool cellar beneath the shop.  Dried fruit (prunes, sultanas, raisins, etc.) came in 

bulk and 1cwt sacks of meal, pig feed, pigeon feed, etc. were stored in the back 

warehouse.  There were trapdoors in every floor, and the wheel of the hoist 

used to raise and lower the sacks still survives in the top of the building.  During 

this period the shop was very busy, and supplied several of the large houses 

locally, as well as the people of Ironbridge: it was open from 8.00 a.m. to 7.00 

p.m., with half-day closing on Wednesday.   

 
During the 1960s, J. C. Lloyd sold the shop and after other changes of 

ownership, it was closed down. Federated Properties Ltd. sold it to the 

Landmark Trust in 1972 who carried out alterations including the fitting out of 

two flats above the shop. In 1978 the Trust leased the ground floor shop to the 

Ironbridge Gorge Museum Trust. 
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The grocer’s shop in the 19th century at Iron Bridge House, 

in the collection of the Ironbridge Gorge Museum Trust. 
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From the sale catalogue of the 

property of Thomas Parker, June 1916  



 Iron Bridge House History Album 

26 

 

Restoration of Iron Bridge House  

 

This building was bought by the Landmark Trust in 1972. For a while, the 

Ironbridge Gorge Museum Trust occupied the ground floor under temporary 

licence and used it as a shop, but in 1975 work on the restoration began. This 

involved repaving the full width in front of the shop, the old bricks being mostly 

broken. In the interior, many alterations had to be made for the benefit of the 

Ironbridge Gorge Museum, which still occupies the basement and ground floor.   

As well as replastering and redecorating throughout the building, it was 

necessary to replace some of the first-floor joists and to remake the ceiling, 

which was fireproofed. New window-frames and doors were also provided and 

the house was divided in two, providing one flat for the tenants, Mr and Mrs 

Hickman, who had been living in the building before the Landmark Trust bought 

it and who agreed to act as caretakers, and a second to be let to Landmarkers. 

The fireplace that was in the shop was moved to the Landmark sitting-room. 

New heating was installed. The restoration was finished by 1977 and the 

improved ground floor and basement premises were leased to the lronbridge 

Gorge Museum Trust in 1978. 

The architect of the restoration was George Robb, FRIBA, of Chapel-en-le-Frith, 

and the building work was carried out by Messrs.W. A. Sherratt Ltd. of Church 

Stretton, Salop and Messrs.Geo.Linnecor & Son (Midlands) Ltd.of Bridgnorth. 
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The Iron Bridge House in the early 

1970s and during restoration. 
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The building before and during restoration 

showing the blocked up windows and 

irregular glazing. 
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Life in a 19th Century Grocer’s Shop  

 
It is difficult for us to appreciate what life was like in Egerton Smith’s grocer’s 

shop in 19th century Ironbridge. There would have been a large bustling 

household, many of whom would have had to perform tasks that have now 

been forgotten.  

 
Victorian grocers bought goods in bulk and then decanted them into smaller 

weights. The term originates from medieval times, when anyone who bought 

goods in bulk, or by the gross, was known as a grocer. Here you could buy just 

about anything. 

 

The following extract, though it begins by describing work in a Co-operative 

store, helps give a sense of the difference between such shops then and now.  

It comes from the autobiography of Winfred Griffiths (b.1895), who was married 

to Jim Griffiths, M.P. for Llanelly and Secretary of State for Wales, and 

describes her life in the early years of the First World War.  (Reproduced from 

Annals of Labour: Autobiographies of British Working-class People 1820-1920, 

ed. John Burnett; Bloomington, Indiana and London 1974.  In its English edition 

this book was entitled Useful Toil.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Iron Bridge House History Album 

30 

 

This picture and the others which follow come from The Grocer, Guide to 

Window Dressing for Grocers, Provision Dealers, Off-licence holders and Oilmen, 

published by The Grocer magazine, (London 1911). 
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